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Report of the Combined Audit and Risk Committee
Introduction
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) has a combined audit and risk committee (“the Audit Committee” or “the Committee”) due
to the nature and current size of the Company. The report of the Audit Committee is presented as required by section
61(8)(a)(iii) of the Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008 (“the Act”).
The Audit Committee is constituted as a statutory committee of Visual International Holdings Limited (“Visual” or “the
Company”) in respect of its statutory duties in terms of Section 94(7) of the Act and a committee of the Board in regard to all
other duties assigned to it by the Board of the Company.
Composition
The Audit Committee consisted of the following non–executive directors for the year ended 29 February 2020:
Date of
Member
CT Vorster (Chairman)#

appointment

Attendance for the
year under review

27 May 2015

100%

L Matlholwa

1 March 2017

100%

R Richards#

20 January 2014

100%

# - Independent
The Chairman, Dr R Richards, is a member of the Audit Committee but does not chair the Audit Committee.
Visual has considered the composition of the Audit Committee in terms of King IV, which recommends that all members are
independent. The Audit Committee has considered this recommendation and notes that with the cancellation of the issue of
shares to Mosegedi as detailed elsewhere in the Annual Financial Statements, Mr L Matholwa is now considered to be
independent.
A representative of the designated advisor attends all Audit Committee meetings.
The Board has approved the Audit Committee terms of reference and is satisfied that Audit Committee members have recent
and relevant financial experience to carry out their duties and responsibilities.
Statement of Audit Committee Responsibilities for the year ended 29 February 2020
Role and work of the Audit Committee
The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board by performing an objective and independent review of the functioning of
the organisation’s finance and accounting control mechanisms. It exercises its functions through close liaison and
communication with management and the external auditors. The Company continued with the appointment of BDO South
Africa Incorporated.
The Committee met once from 1 March 2019 to 29 February 2020 and met a number of times subsequent to year end. The
meetings during the year under review and to the date of this report were held to closely monitor and guide the Company’s
plans and progress in its turnaround strategy and to discuss potential funding partners and transactions, development funding,
the potential acquisition by identified parties to acquire a strategic stake in the Company, as well as sustainable cash flow
management.
During the year, the Company again considered the provisions of the Act as it pertains to business rescue and financial
distress and this was carefully monitored by the Audit Committee and Board over a sustained period of time. The Audit
Committee remained vigilant in this regard for the year under review and to the date of issue of this report, noting that the
financial position of the Company is in fact improving, noting that the Company entered into a Subscription Agreement
subsequent to year end, which enabled the finalisation of the audit and Annual Report for the year ended 28 February 2020.
The Audit Committee met with both the external auditor and advisors in private sessions, without executive management being
present. The Chief Executive Officer, Financial Director, management and the outsourced IFRS advisor attend Audit
Committee meetings as necessary, at the invitation of the Chairman of the Audit Committee. In addition, other non-executive
directors are extended an invitation to attend the Audit Committee meetings..
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Report of the Combined Audit and Risk Committee
Audit Committee Terms of Reference
The Committee is guided by its terms of reference, dealing with membership, structure and levels of authority and has the
following responsibilities:


ensuring compliance with applicable legislation and the requirements of regulatory authorities;



nominating for appointment a registered auditor who, in the opinion of the Audit Committee, is independent of the
Company;



review of matters relating to financial accounting, accounting policies, reporting and disclosure;



review/approval of external audit plans, findings, reports, fees and determination and approval of any non-audit services
that the auditor may provide to the Company and the group;



review/consideration of expertise and experience of the financial director and the finance team;



compliance with the charter; and



compliance with the Company’s code of ethics.

Responsibilities and independence of the external auditor
The Audit Committee addressed its responsibilities properly in terms of the charter during the 2020 financial period. One of
these responsibilities was the assessment of the independence of the auditor.
The Committee is satisfied that the auditor, BDO South Africa Incorporated, is independent of the Company. It has further
satisfied itself that the audit firm and designated auditor, Hilton Craig Kilian, are accredited to appear on the Johannesburg
Stock Exchange (“JSE”) list of accredited auditors. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the relevant documentation to
consider the suitability of the audit firm and designated auditor as stipulated in paragraph 3.84(g)(iii) of the JSE Listings
Requirements and the guidance letter issued by the JSE. It is noted that the audit partner will need to rotate after the year
ending 28 February 2021.
Non-audit services policy
The Audit Committee has an established non-audit services policy as well as an approval process for non-audit services,
where utilised. During the period under review and subsequent to year end, BDO South Africa Incorporated did not perform
any non- audit services.
Internal financial controls and internal auditor
The Committee is of the opinion that, whilst very basic, Visual’s system of internal financial controls and financial reporting
procedures are functioning effectively and form a basis for the preparation of reliable financial statements. The appointment
of a new financial manager during the previous year, vastly improved such internal controls and processes. He has since
stepped down but the improvement has persisted and subsequent to year end, the services of an outsourced IFRS advisor
were engaged.
The Company has not appointed an internal auditor based on various considerations, including the nature of the business, the
size of the business and the accounting and control environment. The Committee continues to consider the requirement for
internal audit as a standing agenda item. The Committee is satisfied that it has complied with its legal, regulatory and other
responsibilities.
Expertise and experience of the financial function
A Financial Manager, Mr Ernst Marais CA(SA), was appointed during the previous year and his services were retained on an
ad hoc basis during the year ended 29 February 2020 on a needs basis due to the limited operations. Mr R Kadalie was
appointed as the Interim Financial Director in February 2019, Ms Lee-Anne Schreuder continues in the accounting function
and the services of Professor Sean Weldon were engaged to assist with the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 29 February 2020. The Company will appoint a new Financial Director once operations and activities
increase.
In terms of section 3.84(g)(i) of the JSE Listing Requirements, the Committee has considered, and is satisfied with, the
experience and expertise of Mr R Kadalie as the Interim Financial Director, as supported by Ms Lee-Anne Schreuder as well as
the outsource services of Mr E Marais and Professor Sean Weldon.
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 to maintain adequate accounting records and are
responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this
report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the group as at
the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the
annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are based
upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
group and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these
responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout
the group and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the group’s business is
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the group is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the group. While operating risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the group endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the group’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2022 and, in light of this review and the
current financial position, they are satisfied that the group has or had access to adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the group's financial statements. The
financial statements have been examined by the group's external auditors and their report is presented on pages 16 to 21.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 22 to 65, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the board on 24 March 2021 and were signed on their behalf by:
Approval of financial statements

Director
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Directors' Report
Background, Incorporation and Nature of Business
Visual International Holdings Limited (“Visual” or “the Company” or “the Group”) was incorporated as a private company on 5
October 2006 under the name Presto Financing Proprietary Limited. The Company’s name was changed, and it was converted
to a public company on 23 December 2013. Visual then acquired the controlling interest in Visual International Proprietary
Limited (“Visual International”) from CKR Investment Trust with effect from 1 March 2012 and became the holding company of
the various subsidiaries of Visual. Thus Visual, with its wholly owned subsidiary Visual International, commenced operating as
a group for the year ended 28 February 2013. Visual listed on the JSE on 23 May 2014.
Visual is essentially a property developer that acquires land, rezones the land, installs the relevant services and then
constructs houses and apartments on the land for sale to homeowners or investors. Visual focuses on the development of
entire suburbs which comprise houses, apartments, lifestyle and retirement accommodation, retail facilities, schools, offices,
and recreation as well as other related facilities. With this focus, Visual is able to ensure the overall quality and integrity of the
suburb. It enables Visual to supply quality residences and other facilities at affordable prices. Furthermore, providing these
combinations in a single suburb leads to job creation, which is important to the owners and occupants. To date, close to 500
homes and apartments have been developed by Visual at Stellendale.
International Financial Reporting Standards and Basis of Preparation
The consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the South African
Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008, as amended (“the Act”), the JSE Listings Requirements, as well as the framework concepts
and the recognition and measurement requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.
The accounting policies used in the preparation of the annual results are in terms of IFRS and are consistent with those
applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of the Group for the year ended 28 February 2019, except for the
adoption of new or revised accounting standards and interpretations that became effective during the year ended 29 February
2020. During the year under review, the Group adopted all the standards and interpretations that were effective and deemed
applicable to the Group. The adoption of these standards did not have an effect on the current or prior year results. Full details
of the new standards and interpretations and the related disclosures are included in Note 2 – New Standards and
Interpretations of the consolidated audited financial statements of the Group.
Financial Results
As previously advised, the Company has been negatively impacted by the impact of the delay in the commencement of the
further development of Stellendale due to a number of constraints, including the banking sector contracting its lending to
property developers and potential home owners in the middle-income segment. Furthermore, the Company had incurred very
expensive debt, which was causing additional difficulties for the Group. This was repaid during 2018.
Milost transactions
During the year ended 28 February 2019, the Company had a number of engagements and potential transactions such as with
the Milost group, which initially looked favourable for the group. In late 2017, Visual signed a funding agreement with Milost for
R500 million draw down facility. Funds in respect of the first two drawdown notices for R1.5 million and R2 million, respectively,
had been received and were applied to working capital.
On 19 February 2018, Visual announced the signing of a Claw Back Offer with Milost relating to a subscription for 252 673 771
new shares in Visual at a subscription price of 11.81 cents per share in order to raise R29 840 772, against which Milost did
not perform, citing concerns around the drop in Visual’s share price. On 8 May 2018 the Company announced new terms
agreed to between the Company and Milost relating to a subscription for 310 000 000 new shares in Visual at a subscription
price of 3.3 cents in order to raise R10 230 000 (“the Claw Back Subscription”) by way of a Claw Back Offer. The proceeds
would have supported the recapitalisation of Visual and provide working and development capital for the business. However,
Milost again failed to pay the Claw Back Subscription by the due date and subsequently advised the Company that it had taken
a decision to no longer invest in public companies. It was discovered that the cited drop in share price was actually partly as a
result of Milost selling the previously acquired shares in the market.
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Directors' Report
Cancellation of Phase 1 of the Mosegedi Acquisition
As announced on SENS on 24 October 2017, Visual and the major shareholders of Mosegedi had agreed not to proceed with
Phase 2 of the acquisition of 18.9% of Mosegedi due to the audit of the Mosegedi financial statements still being incomplete at
the time as a result of difficulties with the year ended 29 February 2016 (which had a knock-on effect into the year ended 28
February 2017).
The parties had subsequently also entered into an agreement to unwind the acquisition of 31.2% of Mosegedi ab initio,
although this was subject to the payment by Milost by the end of May 2018 in terms of the Milost Claw Back Offer. However,
the agreement of the parties to effect the cancellation of Phase 1 of the Mosegedi Acquisition remained, which would result in
the parties being put back into the same position as had they not entered into the agreement. A further announcement in
respect of the confirmation of the implementation of the Mosegedi cancellation agreement was announced. The Group annual
financial statements for the year ended 29 February 2020 have been prepared on the basis that Phase 1 of the Mosegedi
Acquisition has been unwound. This is consistent will the accounting treatment for the year ended 28 February 2019.
Chynge Finance funding and investment agreement
The Company entered into a loan agreement with Chynge Finance in terms of which Chynge Finance had extended a loan to
the Company in the amount of R3 million, of which R1.5 million was repaid in October 2019. This loan is secured by Erf 18363
included in noncurrent assets held for sale and bears interest at prime minus 3% per annum, prime being 9.75% at year end.
The loan is repayable on demand however this will not be repaid within 12 months.
Acquisitions and Disposals
Stellendale Junction
At a General Meeting held on 13 June 2019 shareholders approved the disposal of land contract (‘Disposal’ or ‘Disposal
Agreement’) and a property development management contract (‘Development Management Agreement’) with Makoro
Property Developers Proprietary Limited (‘Makoro’ or ‘the Purchaser’) in respect of the property described as Erf 25312 Kuils
River, situated in the registration division of Stellenbosch in extent of 2.77179 hectares (‘Stellendale Junction’). Visual will earn
property development fees for the successful completion of units in the Stellendale Junction development, which includes a
50% share in the profits of Stellendale Junction. Due to COVID-19, the development process has been delayed and the
company is expecting its first income from this development in July 2021.
Mosegedi agreement cancellation
During the year ended 28 February 2018, the Company had entered into an agreement with Messrs P Pheelwane, L Matlholwa
and V Mokgatlha regarding a transaction whereby Visual would effectively acquire 31.2% (in the year ended 28 February 2018)
and 18.9% (in the year ending 28 February 2019) of the issued share capital of Mosegedi for a minimum price of R13 780 000
and a maximum price of R31 242 700 in two phases (“Mosegedi Acquisition”). The effective date of the acquisition of the 31.2%
was 1 March 2017.
Due to difficulties with the audit of historical information of Mosegedi for the years ended 29 February 2016 and 28 February
2017, Visual and Mosegedi agreed not to pursue the acquisition and agreed to unwind the transaction ab initio and cancel the
issue of 106 000 000 shares. In the interim, Mosegedi had advanced funds to Visual, which debt required repayment. The
results for the year ended 28 February 2019 and 29 February 2020 have both been prepared on the basis that the Mosegedi
Acquisition was not entered into and the shares were not issued.
The shares have been cancelled and delisted, and the debt owed to Mosegedi has been repaid, with both parties being placed
back into the position before the entering of the transaction.
The company did not enter into any other acquisition or disposal transactions during the year under review.
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Directors' Report
Board of Directors
The Board of Directors for the year under review, and to the date of this report, was as follows:
Executive

Date appointed

Charles Kenneth Robertson – CEO

1 May 1992

Reuben Kadalie (Interim Financial Director1)
Note 1 -

Date resigned

23 October 2013

Change in role from Non-Executive to Executive director with effect from 20 February 2019

Non-Executive

Date appointed

Ruben Richards – Independent Chairman

21 January 2014

Carl Theodorus Vorster – Independent

21 January 2014

Lesedi Matlholwa Independent

Date not
reappointed

1 March 2017

Diana Genu – Independent

23 November 2017

Enoch Godongwana – Independent

5 March 2018

24 April 2019
24 April 2019

Ms Diana Genu and Mr Enoch Godongwana were not re-elected as directors at the AGM held on 24 April 2019 and were
therefore taken off as directors.
Interests of Directors
At 29 February 2020, based on 268 265 547 shares in issue (i.e. excluding 106 000 000 shares pursuant to the Mosegedi
Share Cancellation), the aggregate direct and indirect interests of the directors of Visual in the issued share capital of the
Company are indicated below:
Direct
Indirect
Percentage of
Director
beneficial
beneficial
Total
total issued
share capital
CK Robertson

-

158 530 220

158 530 220

59.09%

200 000

-

200 000

0.07%

R Richards

-

200 000

200 000

0.07%

CT Vorster

100 000

-

100 000

0.04%

TOTAL

300 000

158 730 220

159 030 220

59.28%

R Kadalie

There has been no change in the above interests from the year-end until the date of approval of the annual financial
statements.
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Directors' Report
The CKR Investment Trust and RAL Trust are trusts associated with CK Robertson, which together held 59.09% of the issued
shares in the Company at 29 February 2020 (2019: 59.09%). These shareholdings are reflected under the indirect beneficial
shareholding of CK Robertson above.
Directors' Interests in Contracts
No director had any new interest in contracts of the Group during the current year. A permanent register of directors’ interests
in contracts is maintained by the Company Secretary.
Interest in Subsidiaries and Joint Arrangements
Details of material interests in subsidiary companies and joint arrangements are presented in the consolidated group financial
statements in notes 5 and 6.
There were no significant acquisitions or disposals during the year ended 29 February 2020.
Borrowing Powers
Subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Incorporation (“MOI”) of the Company, the directors may from time to time:


borrow for the purposes of the Company such sums as they think fit; and



secure the payment or repayment of any such sums, or any other sum, as they think fit, whether by the creation and issue
of securities, mortgage or charge upon all or any of the property or assets of the Company.

The directors shall procure (but as regards subsidiaries of the Company only insofar as by the exercise of voting and other
rights or powers of control exercisable by the Company they can so procure) that the aggregate principal amount at any one
time outstanding in respect of moneys so borrowed or raised by:


the Company; and



all the subsidiaries for the time being of the Company (excluding monies borrowed or raised by any of such companies
from any other of such companies but including the principal amount secured by any outstanding guarantees or
suretyships given by the Company or any of its subsidiaries for the time being for the indebtedness of any other company
or companies whatsoever and not already included in the aggregate amount of the moneys so borrowed or raised), shall
not exceed, to the extent applicable, the aggregate amount at that time authorised to be borrowed or secured by the
Company or the subsidiaries for the time being of the Company (as the case may be).

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties
There were no changes in the nature of the property, plant and equipment and investment properties of the group or in the
policy regarding their use.
At 29 February 2020, the Group's investment in property, plant and equipment amounted to R9 075 (2019: R107 479), of which
R Nil (2019: R70 163) was added in the current year through additions. Refer to note 4 of these annual financial statements for
further details regarding additions and disposals made during the year.
Company Secretary
Light Consulting Proprietary Limited, formerly known as Arbor Capital Company Secretarial Proprietary Limited, was appointed
as company secretary with effect from 7 January 2014.
The directors all have unlimited access to the company secretary who, inter alia, advises the board and its committees on
issues relating to compliance, the JSE Listings Requirements and the King IV report on corporate governance. Directors are
furthermore, with the prior knowledge of the chief executive officer, entitled to ask any questions of any personnel and enjoy
unrestricted access to all company documentation, information and property.
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Auditors
BDO South Africa Incorporated continued in office as auditors for the company for 2020.
At the AGM, the shareholders will be requested to reappoint BDO South Africa Incorporated as the independent external
auditors of the company and to confirm Mr HC Kilian as the designated lead audit partner for the 2021 financial year.
Transfer Secretary
Link Market Services South Africa Proprietary Limited is appointed as the transfer secretary.
Share Capital
Refer to note 13 of the Group financial statements for details of the authorised and issued share capital.
The authorised and unissued shares are under the control of the directors of the Company, subject to the provisions of the
MOI, the Act and the JSE Listings Requirements. There are no treasury shares held as at the last practicable date.
Special Resolutions, Share Capital and Issue/Repurchase of Shares
No shares were issued or repurchased during the year under review.
No special resolutions were passed during the year under review, other than the following special resolutions which were
passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 24 April 2019:


Approval of non-executive directors’ fees;



Approval of the general authority to enter into funding agreements, provide loans or other financial assistance;



Approval of authority to issue shares, securities convertible into shares or rights that may exceed 30% of the voting
power of the current issued share capital; and



Approval of general authority to acquire (repurchase) shares.

No special resolutions were passed at a subsidiary level during the year under review.
Dividend
The Company has not declared a dividend for the year ended 29 February 2020 (2019: Nil).
Litigation
There are no legal or arbitration proceedings, including any proceedings that are pending or threatened, of which the Company
and the Group are aware that may have or have had in the last 12 months, a material effect on the Company’s or the Group’s
financial position.
Reportable Irregularity
In accordance with the auditor’s responsibility in terms of section 45 of the Auditing Profession Act, No. 26 of 2005, the
auditors have reported that they have identified certain unlawful acts or omissions committed by management of the Company
which constitutes a reportable irregularity in terms of the Companies Act, and have reported such matters to the Independent
Regulatory Board for Auditors. The matter pertaining to the reportable irregularity relates to the fact that the annual financial
statements of the Company have not been issued within six months of their financial year end. This results in non-compliance
with section 30(1) of the Companies Act. The Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors have notified the Companies and
Intellectual Property Commission.
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Shareholder loan
The loan to the shareholder (RAL Trust) was impaired during the year under review. Due to COVID-19 and the negative
impact on the property market, the property sector has become a focus area for directors and shareholders. Two independent
valuations were obtained for the entire property portfolio, including the property held by the shareholder (RAL Trust). These
were performed by Adval Valuation Centre cc and DDP Valuation and Advisory Services Proprietary Limited (“DDP”). Adval
Valuation Centre valued the vacant land held by the RAL Trust on the basis that the land will be rezoned to business use.
DDP valued the land on the comparable sales basis, taking into account the current highest and best use, which they believe
will be General Residential 2 to 4. This resulted in a value significantly lower than that calculated by Adval. The directors
raised a provision for credit loss against the shareholder loan, which is backed by the property Erf 18362, Kuils River. As per
the initial listing requirements, the property will be independently valued based on the applicable rezoning at the time of
transfer from the RAL Trust to Visual International Proprietary Limited.
Commitments
The Group has entered into an agreement before listing on the JSE, in terms of which it is required to purchase a property,
consisting of Erf 18362 from the RAL Trust, subject to the rezoning of Erf 18362 from agricultural to general. The purchase
price will be equal to the fair value of Erf 18362 on the date that it is rezoned and will be used to settle all or part of the loan
receivable from the RAL Trust, to the extent of the fair value after rezoning. The property will be subject to an independent
valuation.
Events after the Reporting Period
Subscription Agreements with Verityhurst Proprietary Limited (“Verityhurst’)
On 17 June 2020 the Company entered into a subscription agreement with Verityhurst (“the Subscriber”) in terms of which the
Subscriber agreed to subscribe for 303 030 304 ordinary Visual shares for cash at an issue price of 4 cents per share for a
consideration of R5 320 000, of which R3 000 000 has been agreed to be advanced as a loan to the Company and applied to
creditors, working capital, the settlement of the Mosegedi debtor (which has enabled the cancellation of the Mosegedi shares
subsequent to year-end) and the finalisation of the audits and Annual Reports for the two years ended 28 February 2019 and
29 February 2020. As at the date of this report, R2 450 000 had been advanced to Visual.
The Subscription Price is at an 8.89% premium to the 30-day volume weighted average share price of 3.67 cents per share at
30 June 2019, being the last date of trade prior to the suspension of the Company on the JSE and the reference price used
and agreed to by the Company and the Subscriber. The Board approved the Issue of shares under the General Authority to
issue shares for cash on 17 June 2020. The shares to be issued will rank pari passu with the existing shares in issue and are
of a class already in issue. The shares will be issued and listed after the lifting of the suspension in trade of the Company’s
securities.
There are no other material events that require reporting after the year end, other than in the normal course of business.
COVID-19
Since December 2019 the spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted many economies around the world. Businesses were
forced to limit operations and has resulted in an economic slowdown. Governments and central banks have assisted with
monetary interventions to stabilise economic conditions.
Visual has had little trading subsequent to the 2019 year-end, while trying to secure funding for future development of its
investment property. Staff operated remotely and the Company has managed to continue operating during this period and
Management are confident that it will be able to continue to do so until such time as this is no longer required.
Other than the delay in the commencement of the Stellendale Junction development noted above, COVID-19 has not had any
major impact on the group.
The company made arrangements with its creditors for debts to be settled later on in the 2021 year. There has been no threat
of litigation by any of the creditors, which are supporting the turnaround initiatives of Visual.
The company has determined that this is a non-adjusting subsequent event. Accordingly, the financial position and results of
operations as of and for the year ended 29 February 2020 have not been adjusted to reflect its impact. It is not possible to
reliably estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and results
of the company for future periods.

13

Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(Registration number 2006/030975/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 29 February 2020
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Going Concern and Future Prospects
The Group annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and the
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
The Group’s cash flow situation improved during the year under review with the proceeds being received from the disposal of
Stellendale Junction as detailed further below. The directors have considered the operational budget and cash flow forecasts
for the ensuing year which are based on the current expected economic and market conditions as well as the expected
proceeds from the Property Development Agreement mentioned below, expected from July 2021 onwards and the directors
believe the company has adequate financial resources to continue as a going concern.
As announced on SENS on 31 July 2018, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Chynge Finance Proprietary
Limited (“Chynge Finance”) in terms of which Chynge Finance has extended a loan to the Company in the amount of R3
million, which loan agreement incorporated an option to subscribe for shares in the future. This loan was repayable on 6
January 2020, but prior to this date the repayment date of this loan was extended for an indefinite period; and the parties
agreed by way of an addendum to cancel the option. Subsequently, R1.5 million of the loan has been repaid. It is the
intention for Visual International to oversee and manage the building proect of the Marine, Strand and that Chynge Finance will
receive its settlement payments on the loan from the advance payments during the building process.
In addition, during the year under review, the Group entered into a compromise offer with SARS for the settlement of old
liabilities, which primarily arose from the initial restructure of the group ahead of listing. The Group successfully negotiated a
settlement with SARS which resulted in the reduction of R5 385 984. All amounts owed to SARS have been settled from
proceeds received on the disposal of Stellendale Junction.
As announced on SENS on 28 December 2018, Visual International agreed terms for the disposal of land with Makoro
Property Developers Proprietary Limited (“Makoro”) in terms of which Visual International disposed of the property described
as Erf 25312 Kuils River, situated in the registration division of Stellenbosch in extent of 27.7179 hectares (“Stellendale
Junction”) for a consideration of R10 million, plus VAT (if applicable) (“Stellendale Junction Disposal Agreement”). Zoning
rights are in place for this property and the disposal was finalised in October 2019 with the transfer of the property. The
proceeds of R10 million were received, substantially reducing the remaining debt in the group and repaying the R1.5 million to
Chynge Finance above.
Simultaneously with the sale agreement, a property development management agreement in respect of Stellendale Junction
was concluded by Visual International with Makoro in terms of which Visual International will receive 50% of the net profit for
the development of each phase (“Property Development Management Agreement”). Furthermore, Makoro concluded a loan
agreement for a loan of R2 million with the Company, which amount attracts interest at 3% above the prime rate charged by
ABSA Bank with the terms being renegotiated after year-end. In terms of the revised terms the repayment date will be the
earlier of 28 February 2022 and the date of completion of the development of the initial two buildings under the development
project. In addition subsequent to year end the addendum to the Stellendale Junctional Development Management Agreement
indicates that the payment of any remuneration and/or profit share payable to Visual is subject to all the amounts owing by
Visual, Visual International Proprietary Limited and the trustees for the time being My Place Trust be repaid in full to the
satisfaction of Makoro. In addition there shall be set-off of amounts owing in terms of the loan agreement to Makoro and any
remuneration/profit share due to Visual, failing which it is expected that the proceeds from the balance of the share
subscription from Verityhurst will be utilised to repay the loan.
The development potential in respect of the Stellendale Junction land is approximately 500 apartments on the site. The sale
and development of 56 of these apartment buildings will bring revenue and additional cash flow to the Group over the next two
to three years. The Company manages the development processes, and Makoro pays for all development expenses and for
securing the development funding for Stellendale Junction.
With the restructuring and de-gearing exercise essentially complete, Visual has been actively seeking development funding or
partners in order to continue with the development of the rest of Stellendale. After year-end, the Company entered into an
equity and loan agreement with Verityhurst (Pty) Ltd. R2.45 million of the total of R5.32 million has been lent to the Company
by Verityhurst, which loan will be converted into shares after unsuspension by the JSE of the trading of the Company’s shares.
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Directors' Report
As the full amount of the investment/loan by Verityhurst has not yet been paid, the fact that the properties of Phase 1 of
Stellendale Junction must still be sold and developed, there is material uncertainties related to these events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, that it may be unable to release
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The directors believe that due to the disposal of
Stellendale Junction, from which it will earn property development fees and profit share, the Subscription Agreement with
Verityhurst for the injection of R5.32 million and conclusion of the other agreements with terms referred to above, the Company
will have adequate financial resources to continue as a going concern. In addition, the remaining creditors are those that are
close to the Company and support the turnaround initiatives of the Company. Accordingly, the directors have adopted the
going concern basis in the preparation of the annual financial statements.
The Company has sufficient cash and has commenced with projects and expects to secure access to funding resources to
grow the Group’s property assets.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of

Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Visual International Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the group and company) set out on pages 22 to 65, which comprise the consolidated and separate
statements of financial position as at 29 February 2020, and the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and the consolidated and
separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated and separate financial position of Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries as at 29
February 2020, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and consolidated and separate cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act of South Africa.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and company in accordance with the
sections 290 and 291 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered
Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional
Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November 2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other independence
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities, as applicable, in accordance with the IRBA Codes and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Codes are consistent with the corresponding sections of the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) respectively. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
We draw attention to Note 32 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Group had accumulated losses of
R80 583 921 (2019: R54 445 571) and the Company accumulated losses of R84 782 803 (2019: R49 215 515). The
current liabilities exceed the current assets by R13 125 040 (2019: R12 973 568) on Group level. As stated in Note 32,
these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 32, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the group and company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty
relating to Going Concern section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment property (consolidated
financial statements) – note 5, accounting policy 1.4

The audit procedures we performed included, amongst
others, the following:

The carrying value of investment property amounted to
R12 720 000. As per the accounting policy, investment
property is initially recognised at cost. Subsequent to
initial measurement investment property is measured at
fair value.
The Group used independent valuators to determine the
fair values of all the properties in the current financial
year.

•

We assessed the design and implementation of
key controls in the valuation process of the
properties.

•

We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of management’s independent
valuers performing the valuations.

•

In addition, we discussed the scope of the
valuators’ work with management and reviewed
their terms of engagement to determine that
there were no matters that affected their
independence and objectivity or imposed scope
limitations upon them.

•

We confirmed that the measurement basis for
the valuations were consistent with
International Financial Reporting Standards and
industry norms and tested the mathematical
accuracy of the valuations.

•

We satisfied ourselves that the techniques used
by the valuer is appropriate in the
circumstances, in terms of IFRS and have been
applied consistently.

•

We evaluated the reasonableness of the
judgements of the independent valuer, in
particular the basis used in the valuations and
the significant assumptions which also included
the planned rezoning of one of the properties:

The inputs with the most significant impact on these
valuations are disclosed in Note 5 – Details of valuations
in the Annual Financial Statements.
As a result of the significant judgement and estimates
required by the directors in determining the fair value of
investment property, we have identified this as a key
audit matter.

This was performed by completing the
following procedures:
o
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Significant inputs were compared to
market data to confirm the
appropriateness of these
judgements.

o

o

The data provided to the valuer was
assessed for accuracy by comparing
to the source documents provided by
the client.
We compared recent sales of similar
properties to the value provided by
the valuer.

•

We have appointed an independent auditor’s
expert to assist us with the evaluation of the
property values received from management and
performed the same procedures on the expert
and his work as performed on management’s
expert above.

•

We have discussed the differences in the
valuations with management and evaluated the
differences against support to enable us to
conclude on the values in the financials.

•

We evaluated that the presentation and
disclosure of the investment property in the
consolidated financial statements is in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Impairment assessment in terms of IFRS 9 with regards The audit procedures we performed included, amongst
to the shareholder loan (consolidated financial
others, the following:
statements)
– note 8
•
We assessed the Expected Credit Loss Allowance
by critically evaluating managements definition
The value of the shareholder loan amounted to
of default and the expected loss rates.
R6 499 800 in the Group financial statements after an
Expected Credit Loss Allowance of R33 711 636 was
•
We assessed the forward-looking assumptions
recorded in the current year.
applied by management in their expected credit
loss assessment calculation and assessed the
recoverability of the shareholder’s loan through
The underlying asset owned by the shareholder, which
consideration of the requirements of IFRS 9:
was the subject matter as part of the impairment
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
assessment, is vacant land. Visual International
Measurement
Proprietary Limited entered into an agreement in terms
of which it will acquire the said property once it has
been rezoned for its intended use. The timing of
cashflow is dependent on the sale of the land, which
increased the default risk of the expected credit loss.
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Due to the significance of the balance and a significant
degree of uncertainty in relation to the expected credit
loss assessment, significant judgement is required by the
directors in determining the estimated recoverable
amount of the shareholder’s loan, as a result we have
identified the impairment assessment of the
shareholder’s loan as a key audit matter.

Impairment assessment in terms of IFRS 9 of loans to
group companies (company level) – note 7
An amount of Rnil (2019: R33 124 982) is being owed to
the company by one of the subsidiaries, Visual
International Proprietary Limited. This is after an
Expected Credit Loss Allowance of R38 296 836 (2019:
R177 299) in the current financial year, which reduced
the carrying value to nil.

•

We inspected the annual financial statements of
the related party to determine the underlying
assets, which consisted primarily of property.
We have obtained management’s expert
valuation of the property and compared the
value with recent sales of similar properties
within the region.

•

We evaluated that the presentation and
disclosure of the shareholder’s loan in the
consolidated financial statements is in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

•

The audit procedures we performed included
amongst others, the following:

•

We assessed the Expected Credit Loss
Allowance by critically evaluating
managements assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates.

•

We critically evaluated managements
calculations and assessed the recoverability
of the group company loan through
consideration of the requirements of IFRS 9:
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

•

We inspected the annual financial statements
of Visual International Proprietary limited and
the related party to determine the underlying
assets, which consisted primarily of property.
We reviewed the valuation performed by
management’s independent experts on the
property and compared these with recent
sales of similar properties within the region.

•

We evaluated that the presentation and
disclosure of the loans to group companies
in the company’s financial statements is in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

In turn, Visual International Proprietary Limited is owed
R6.5 million by RAL Trust. At group level, this amount is
linked to the shareholder loan included in note 8, as
identified in the key audit matter above.
Due to the significance of the balance and the extent of
judgement required by the directors in determining the
estimated recoverable amount of the group loan, we
have identified the impairment assessment of the group
loan as a key audit matter.
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Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the document titled “Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries Annual Financial Statements for the year
ended 29 February 2020”, which includes the Directors’ Report, the Audit Committee’s Report and the Company
Secretary’s Certificate as required by the Companies Act of South Africa, which we obtained prior to the date of this
report, and the Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. The other information
does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act
of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s
and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group and / or the
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s
and the company’s internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the group’s and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
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the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the group and /or the company to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that BDO
South Africa Incorporated has been the auditor of Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries for 4 years.
In accordance with our responsibilities in terms of sections 44(2) and 44(3) of the Auditing Profession Act, we report
that we have identified a reportable irregularity in terms of the Auditing Profession Act. We have reported such matter
to the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors. The matter pertaining to the reportable irregularity relates to the
fact that the annual financial statements of the Company have not been issued within six months of their financial year
end. This results in non-compliance with section 30(1) of the Companies Act. The company also did not prepare and
issue annual financials within four months of their financial year end which resulted in non-compliance with paragraph
3.19 of the JSE’s Listing Requirements. The Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors have notified the Companies and
Intellectual Property Commission.

BDO South Africa Incorporated
Registered Auditors
Hilton Craig Kilian
Director
Registered Auditor
25 March 2021
106 Park Drive
Port Elizabeth Central
Port Elizabeth, 6001
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Statement of Financial Position as at 29 February 2020
Group
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2020

Company
2019

2020

2019

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Loans to group companies
Loans to shareholders

9,075
12,720,000
6,499,800

107,479
1,920,000
37,000,845

-

34,124,982
-

19,228,875

39,028,324

-

34,124,982

129,504
1,686
372,617

209,183
3,074,334
1,686
284,181

-

-

503,807

3,569,384

-

-

-

10,000,000

-

-

19,732,682

52,597,708

-

34,124,982

73,809,025
(80,583,921)

73,809,025
(54,445,571)

73,809,025
(84,782,803)

73,809,025
(49,215,516)

(6,774,896)
(1,702,196)

19,363,454
(1,614,174)

(10,973,778)
-

24,593,509
-

(8,477,092)

17,749,280

(10,973,778)

24,593,509

8,547,657
4,436,969
1,596,301

7,582,352
10,723,124
-

8,547,657
-

7,582,352
-

14,580,927

18,305,476

8,547,657

7,582,352

9,515,310
4,113,537

13,194,904
38,434
3,309,614

2,008,478
417,643
-

1,531,478
417,643
-

13,628,847

16,542,952

2,426,121

1,949,121

Total Liabilities

28,209,774

34,848,428

10,973,778

9,531,473

Total Equity and Liabilities

19,732,682

52,597,708

-

34,124,982

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables
Finance lease receivables
Current tax receivable
Cash and cash equivalents

4
5
7
8

11
9
12

Non-current assets held for sale and assets of disposal
groups
Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of Parent
Share capital
Accumulated loss

13

Non-controlling interest

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Loans from shareholders
Borrowings
Deferred tax

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans from group companies
Borrowings

15
16
10

17
14
16
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Group
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2020

Company
2019

2020

2019

Revenue
Other operating income
Movement in credit loss allowances
Other operating expenses

18
19
20

423,173
6,441,914
(33,711,636)
(5,058,945)

25,588
76,694
(8,501,627)

720,000
(38,296,835)
(965,505)

(1,298,039)

Operating loss
Investment income
Finance costs
Fair value adjustments

20
21
22

(31,905,494)
3,537,224
(2,434,946)
6,173,146

(8,399,345)
3,229,868
(2,405,878)
-

(38,542,340)
3,965,457
(990,404)
-

(1,298,039)
4,808,875
(859,348)
-

(24,630,070)
(1,596,301)

(7,575,355)
(242,466)

(35,567,287)
-

2,651,488
-

(26,226,371)

(7,817,821)

(35,567,287)

2,651,488

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation
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(Loss) profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year

(26,226,371)

(7,817,821)

(35,567,287)

2,651,488

(Loss) profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

(26,138,349)
(88,022)

(7,785,243)
(32,578)

(35,567,287)
-

2,651,488
-

(26,226,371)

(7,817,821)

(35,567,287)

2,651,488

(26,138,349)
(88,022)

(7,785,243)
(32,578)

(35,567,287)
-

2,651,488
-

(26,226,371)

(7,817,821)

(35,567,287)

2,651,488

Total comprehensive (loss) income attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Loss per share
Per share information
Average number of shares
Weighted average number of shares
Loss per share
Loss per share (c)

268,265,546

35

Net asset value per share
Net asset value per share (c)
Net tangible asset value per share (c)
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268,265,546

-

-

(9.74)

(2.90)

-

-

(3.16)
(3.16)

6.62
6.62

-

-
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Share capital

Figures in Rand
Group
Balance at 01 March 2018

Accumulated
Total
Non-controlling Total equity
loss
attributable to
interest
equity holders
of the group /
company

73,809,025

(46,660,328)

27,148,697

Loss for the year

-

(7,785,243)

(7,785,243)

(32,578)

(7,817,821)

Total comprehensive Loss for the year

-

(7,785,243)

(7,785,243)

(32,578)

(7,817,821)

Balance at 01 March 2019

(1,581,596)

73,809,025

(54,445,572)

19,363,453

Loss for the year

-

(26,138,349)

(26,138,349)

(88,022)

(26,226,371)

Total comprehensive Loss for the year

-

(26,138,349)

(26,138,349)

(88,022)

(26,226,371)

73,809,025

(80,583,921)

(6,774,896)

(1,702,196)

(8,477,092)

Balance at 29 February 2020
Note
Company
Balance at 01 March 2018

(1,614,174)

25,567,101

17,749,279

13
(51,867,004)

21,942,021

-

21,942,021

Profit for the year

-

2,651,488

2,651,488

-

2,651,488

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

2,651,488

2,651,488

-

2,651,488

73,809,025

(49,215,516)

24,593,509

-

24,593,509

-

(35,567,287)

(35,567,287)

-

(35,567,287)

-

(35,567,287)

(35,567,287)

-

(35,567,287)

73,809,025

(84,782,803)

(10,973,778)

-

(10,973,778)

Balance at 01 March 2019

73,809,025

Loss for the year
Total comprehensive Loss for the year
Balance at 29 February 2020
Note

13
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Statement of Cash Flows
Group
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2020

Company
2019

2020

2019

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss) / Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Interest received
Finance costs
Fair value gains
Impairment losses
Other operating expenses
Administration fees
SARS compromise
Gain on release of loan obligation
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

(24,630,070)

(7,575,355) (35,567,287)

2,651,488

98,404
(3,537,224)
2,434,946
(6,173,146)
33,711,636
(4,908,621)
(1,297,669)

177,726
(3,229,868) (3,965,457)
2,405,878
990,404
3,028,072 38,296,835
379,838
513,604
(720,000)
-

(4,808,875)
859,348
1,003,040
-

79,679
1,458,309

(154,771)
232,658

451,901

294,999

Cash used in operations
Interest income
Finance costs

(2,763,756)
3,590
(28,431)

(4,735,822)
6,978
(57,921)

-

-

Net cash from operating activities

(2,788,597)

(4,786,765)

-

-

(4,376,854)
10,000,000

(70,163)
-

-

-

5,623,146

(70,163)

-

-

796,339
(3,542,452)

6,137,245
(648,831)

-

-

(2,746,113)

5,488,414

-

-

Cash flows from investing activities
4
5
5

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment property
Proceeds on disposal of non current asset held for sale
Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

25
25

Net cash from financing activities
Total cash movement for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year
12

Total cash at end of the year
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88,436
284,181

631,486
(347,305)

-

-

372,617

284,181

-

-
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1.

Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate annual financial statements are
set out below.
1.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated and separate annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance
with, and in compliance with, International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing these financial statements and
the Companies Act 71 of 2008 of South Africa and the JSE Listing Requirements.
These annual financial statements comply with the requirements of the JSE Listing Requirements, SAICA Financial Reporting
Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and the Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies
which follow and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in Rands, which is the group
and company's functional currency.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 2.
1.2 Consolidation
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the company and all subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries are entities which are controlled by the group.
The group has control of an entity when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from involvement with the entity and it
has the ability to affect those returns through use of its power over the entity.
The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated annual financial statements from the effective date of acquisition to
the effective date of disposal.
All inter-company transactions, balances, and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated in full
on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.
Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified and recognised separately from the
group's interest therein, and are recognised within equity. Losses of subsidiaries attributable to non-controlling interests are
allocated to the non-controlling interest even if this results in a debit balance being recognised for non-controlling interest.
Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements
In the company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.
1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to time, to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The critical judgements made by management in applying accounting policies, apart from those involving estimations, that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, are outlined as follows:
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1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Lease classification
The group is party to leasing arrangements, both as a lessee (short-term leases) and as a lessor. The treatment of leasing
transactions, in the capacity as lessor, in the financial statements is mainly determined by whether the lease is considered to
be an operating lease or a finance lease. In making this assessment, management considers the substance of the lease, as
well as the legal form, and makes a judgement about whether substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred.
Expected manner of realisation for deferred tax
Management have reviewed the investment property portfolio of the group in order to determine the appropriate rate at which to
measure deferred tax. Investment property is measured at fair value. The manner of recovery of the carrying amount, i.e.
through use or sale, affects the determination of the deferred tax assets or liabilities. IFRS assumes that the carrying amount of
investment property is recovered through sale rather than through continued use. Management considered the business model
of the portfolio and concluded that the assumption is not rebutted and that the deferred taxation should be measured on the
sale basis.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment of financial assets
The impairment allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. For
details of the key assumptions and inputs used, refer to the individual notes addressing financial assets.
Fair value estimation
At each reporting date the group assesses whether there is any objective evidence that the carrying value of investment
property has increased/decreased.
Independent valuations are obtained on a 3 yearly rotational basis for the purposes of determining the fair value of investment
property. The effective date of the last detailed valuation on all properties was 28 February 2020. The comparable sales
valuation method was used to determine the fair value of the properties. This method uses the recent selling values of
properties in a similar location, condition and size, adjusted in certain instances for unit density, usability and access. Refer to
note 31 for further information.
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1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment testing
The group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that a non-financial asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for
assets may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are
estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Management assess the appropriateness of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. The useful lives of motor vehicles, furniture and computer equipment are determined based on group replacement
policies for the various assets. Individual assets within these classes, which have a significant carrying amount are assessed
separately to consider whether replacement will be necessary outside of normal replacement parameters.
When the estimated useful life of an asset differs from previous estimates, the change is applied prospectively in the
determination of the depreciation charge.
Determining the levels of fair value measurement
Management classifies the fair value measurement of relevant assets and liabilities based on the observability of inputs used in
determining the fair values of those assets and liabilities. All relevant assets and liabilities are level 3 fair value measurements.
Refer to note 40 for further information.
1.4 Investment property
Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.
Fair value
Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value.
A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net profit or loss for the period in which it arises.
1.5 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the group holds for its own use and which are expected to be used for
more than one year.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly attributable to
the acquisition or construction of the asset.
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged
to write off the asset's carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best
reflects the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by the group. Depreciation is not charged to an asset
if its estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the
date that the asset is classified as held for sale or derecognised.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item

Depreciation method

Average useful life

Computer equipment
Computer software
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

3
3
5
5

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.
The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. When
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the recoverable
amount.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment,
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, is included in
profit or loss when the item is derecognised.
1.6 Financial instruments
Financial instruments held by the group are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
Broadly, the classification possibilities, which are adopted by the group, as applicable, are as follows:
Financial assets which are debt instruments are carried at amortised cost. (This category applies only when the contractual
terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
principal, and where the instrument is held under a business model whose objective is met by holding the instrument to collect
contractual cash flows).
Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost.
Note 30 Financial instruments and risk management presents the financial instruments held by the group based on their
specific classifications.
All sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Sales are sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
The specific accounting policies for the classification, recognition and measurement of each type of financial instrument held by
the group are presented below:
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Loans receivable at amortised cost
Classification
Loans to group companies (note 7), loan to shareholder (note 8), and loans to directors, managers and employees (note ) are
classified as financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost.
They have been classified in this manner because the contractual terms of these loans give rise, on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, and the group's business model is to
collect the contractual cash flows on these loans.
Recognition and measurement
Loans receivable are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the loan. The loans are
measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Credit risk
A loan is considered to be in default when there is evidence that the borrower is in significant financial difficulty such that it will
have insufficient funds to repay the loan on demand. This is assessed based on a number of factors including various liquidity
and solvency ratios.
A significant increase in credit risk (SICR) assessment is performed qualitatively by reference to the borrower's cash flow and
liquid asset position. The risk that the subsidiary will default on an on-demand loan depends on whether it has sufficient cash
or other liquid assets to repay the loan immediately, resulting in the risk of default being assessed as either low (possibly close
to 0%) or high (possibly close to 100%).
A loan is considered to be credit impaired if it meets the definition of a defaulted loan.
Derecognition
Refer to the "derecognition" section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related to derecognition.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Trade and other receivables
Classification
Trade and other receivables, excluding, when applicable, VAT and prepayments, are classified as financial assets
subsequently measured at amortised cost (note 11).
Recognition and measurement
Trade and other receivables are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the receivables.
They are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Impairment
The group measures the loss allowance for trade and lease receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
(lifetime ECL), which represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life
of the receivable. The loss allowance for other receivables is measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit
losses.
Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses
An impairment gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables, through use of a loss allowance account. The impairment loss is disclosed on the face of the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Credit risk
Details of credit risk are included in the trade and other receivables note (note 11) and the financial instruments and risk
management note (note 30).
Derecognition
Refer to the derecognition section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related to derecognition.
Borrowings and loans from related parties
Classification
Loans from group companies (note 7), loans from shareholders (note 8) and borrowings (note 16) are classified as financial
liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Recognition and measurement
Borrowings and loans from related parties are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
loan. The loans are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense, calculated on the effective interest method, is included in profit or loss in finance costs (note 22.)
Borrowings expose the group to liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
management thereof.

Refer to note 30 for details of risk exposure and

Derecognition
Refer to the derecognition section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related to derecognition.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Trade and other payables
Classification
Trade and other payables (note 17), excluding VAT and amounts received in advance, are classified as financial liabilities
subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Recognition and measurement
They are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions, and are measured, at initial recognition, at
fair value plus transaction costs, if any.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Trade and other payables expose the group to liquidity risk and possibly to interest rate risk. Refer to note 30 for details of risk
exposure and management thereof.
Derecognition
Refer to the "derecognition" section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related to derecognition.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent measurement is at amortised cost which is
deemed to be fair value.
1.7 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect
of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered
from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when it
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
Tax expenses
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period.

32

Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(Registration number 2006/030975/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 29 February 2020

Accounting Policies
1.8 Leases
The group assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at the inception of the contract.
A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.
In order to assess whether a contract is, or contains a lease, management determine whether the asset under consideration is
"identified", which means that the asset is either explicitly or implicitly specified in the contract and that the supplier does not
have a substantial right of substitution throughout the period of use. Once management has concluded that the contract deals
with an identified asset, the right to control the use thereof is considered. To this end, control over the use of an identified asset
only exists when the group has the right to substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset as well as the
right to direct the use of the asset.
In circumstances where the determination of whether the contract is or contains a lease requires significant judgement, the
relevant disclosures are provided in the significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty section of these
accounting policies.
Group as lessee
The group has only entered into short-term leases of 12 months or less, or leases of low value assets. The group recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense (note 20) on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Group as lessor
Leases for which the group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases. Lease classification is made at inception and is only reassessed if there is a lease
modification.
Operating leases
Lease payments from operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Operating
lease income is included in other operating income (note 19).
Finance leases
Amounts due from lessees are recognised from commencement date at an amount equal to the group net investment in the
lease. They are presented as finance lease receivables (note 9) on the statement of financial position.
The interest rate implicit in the lease is used to measure the net investment in the lease.
The interest rate implicit in the lease is defined in a manner which causes the initial direct costs to be included in the initial
measurement of the net investment in the lease.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the net investment in the lease comprise the following:

fixed lease payments, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives payable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date.
The group recognises finance income over the lease term, based on a pattern that reflects a constant periodic rate of return on
the net investment in the lease. Finance income recognised on finance leases is included in investment income in profit or loss
(note 21).
The group applies the impairment provisions of IFRS 9 to lease receivables. Refer to the accounting policy for trade and other
receivables as lease receivables are impaired on a consistent basis with that accounting policy.
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1.9 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
1.10 Share capital and equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities.
Ordinary shares are recognised at no par value and classified as 'share capital' in equity.
1.11 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.
1.12 Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers
IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when the revenue should be
recognised. Revenue comprises of fees earned in respect of administration services.
In terms of IFRS 15, the group is required to recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised service or good to a customer. The group’s revenue is measured based on the consideration received
in the contract with the customer excluding Value Added Taxation.
Revenue is earned and recognised as follows:
Administration fees - are fees earned for administration of the property portfolio and operation of the business activities of the
relevant company. The fees are recognised only a monthy basis as cost recovery of part of the CEO and admin staff's salaries.
Revenue other than from contracts with customers
The group recognises revenue from the rental income received from the letting of investment properties.
Taxation is excluded.

Value Added

Revenue is earned and recognised as follows:
Rental income in respect of operating leases with a fixed escalation clause is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
1.13 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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1.14 Other income
Other income consists mainly of recoveries and income from water sales. Other income is recognised, in profit or loss at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, when the group's right to receive payment has been established.
1.15 Earnings per share
Earnings per share is calculated by taking the profit after taxation attributable to the equity holders of the parent and dividing
this by the weighted average number of shares in issue. Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures calculated in the basic
earnings per share by the effects of instruments which dilute the basic earnings per share figure. Headline earnings per share
is calculated in terms of the requirements set out in Circular 01/2019 issued by the JSE.
1.16 Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the group's other components.
All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the group's CEO to make decisions about the resources to
be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance and for which discrete information is available.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the CEO.
1.17 Net asset value and net tangible asset value per share
It is company policy to disclose net asset value and net tangible asset value per share.
In determining net asset value and net tangible asset per share, the total number of shares in issue at year end was used as
denominator.

35

Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(Registration number 2006/030975/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 29 February 2020

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Group
Figures in Rand
2.

2020

Company
2019

2020

2019

Changes in accounting policy

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards on a basis
consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the following new or revised standards.
Application of IFRS 16 Leases
In the current year, the company has adopted IFRS 16 Leases (as issued by the IASB in January 2016) with the date of initial
application being 01 March 2019. IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives and SIC 27 - Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease.
IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant changes to the
lessee accounting by removing the distinction between operating and finance leases and requiring the recognition of a right-ofuse asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets. In contrast to lessee accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting have remained largely unchanged. Details of
these new requirements are described in the accounting policy for leases. The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the
group's annual financial statements is described below.
The group has applied the practical expedient available in IFRS 16 which provides that for contracts which exist at the initial
application date, an entity is not required to reassess whether they contain a lease. This means that the practical expedient
allows an entity to apply IFRS 16 to contracts identified by IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 as containing leases; and to not apply IFRS 16
to contracts that were not previously identified by IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 as containing leases.
IFRS 16 has been adopted by applying the fully retrospective approach, whereby in most instances, the comparative figures
are restated. However in light of the group only having short term leases of 12 months or less, or low value asset leases, no
comparative information was restated.
Leases where group is lessee
As a lessee, the group previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the
lease transferred significantly all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the group. Under IFRS
16 the group recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases excluding short term leases and leases of low
value assets with the resultant impact that leases previously recognised as operating leases are now recognised on the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease liabilities. As noted previously, the group only
has short term leases of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets and therefore no recognition of right-of-use assets
nor corresponding lease liabilities took place.
Leases where group is lessor
The group was not required to make any adjustments on transition to IFRS 16 for leases in which it is a lessor. Additional
disclosure in terms of IFRS 16 has been made.
Impact on financial statements
There was no impact of adopting IFRS 16 on the group annual financial statements other than for additional disclosure.
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3.

New Standards and Interpretations

3.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the group has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial
year and that are relevant to its operations:
Standard/ Interpretation:


Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after
01 January 2019

IFRS 16 Leases

Expected impact:
The impact of the standard
is set out in note 2
Changes in accounting
policy.

3.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective
The group has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mandatory for the group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 March 2020 or later periods:
Standard/ Interpretation:




Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after
Definition of material - IAS 1 Presentation of Financial 01 January 2020
Statements

Expected impact:

Definition of material - IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes 01 January 2020
in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current - IAS 1 01 January 2022
Presentation of financial statements

Unlikely there will be a
material impact
Unlikely there will be a
material impact
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Group
Figures in Rand
4.

2020

Company
2019

2020

2019

Property, plant and equipment

Group

2020
Cost

2019

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Cost

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Computer equipment
Computer software
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

170,033
288,052
72,829
17,617

(163,775)
(286,851)
(72,829)
(16,001)

6,258
1,201
1,616

170,033
288,052
72,829
17,617

(158,292)
(202,221)
(65,207)
(15,332)

11,741
85,831
7,622
2,285

Total

548,531

(539,456)

9,075

548,531

(441,052)

107,479

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2020
Opening
Depreciation
balance
11,741
(5,483)
85,831
(84,630)
7,622
(7,622)
2,285
(669)

Computer equipment
Computer software
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

107,479

(98,404)

Total
6,258
1,201
1,616
9,075

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2019
Opening
balance
6,950
90,657
22,188
4,410
211,851

Computer equipment
Computer software
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Water heating equipment

336,056
5.

Additions

Depreciation

Impairment
loss

Total

9,564
60,599
-

(4,773)
(65,425)
(14,566)
(2,125)
(90,837)

(121,014)

11,741
85,831
7,622
2,285
-

70,163

(177,726)

(121,014)

107,479

Investment property

Group

2020
Cost /
Valuation

Investment property

2019

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

12,720,000

-

12,720,000

Cost /
Valuation
1,920,000

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation
-

1,920,000

Reconciliation of investment property - Group - 2020
Opening
balance
1,920,000

Investment property

Additions
4,626,854

Fair value
adjustments
6,173,146

Total
12,720,000

Reconciliation of investment property - Group - 2019
Opening
balance
1,920,000

Investment property

38

Total
1,920,000

Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(Registration number 2006/030975/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 29 February 2020

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Group
Figures in Rand
5.

2020
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2019
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2019

Investment property (continued)

Pledged as security
Carrying value of assets pledged as security:
Investment property - Machadorp
Investment properties with a fair value of R820 000 are
encumbered as security for a loan of R114 931 (2019:
R124 460) which Standard Bank Limited made to
Hoeksteen Projects Proprietary Limited, a 100%
subsidiary of Visual International Proprietary Limited.

820,000

1,100,000

-

-

255,000
146,972
418,028
(420,000)

255,000
146,972
418,028
-

-

-

400,000

820,000

-

-

4,626,854
6,873,146

-

-

-

11,500,000

-

-

-

Details of property
Imperial Bank Terraces
Being Erf No's 6179 and 6176 situated in the
municipality of Bellville, Cape Town, held under Title
Deed No's ST22609/2005 and ST4408/2007.
Imperial Bank Terraces are storerooms held to
generate rental income and for capital appreciation.
- Purchase price: 1 December 2005
- Additions since purchase
- Fair value adjustment - 2016
- Fair value adjustment - 2020

South Bank (Erf 26103)
Erf No 26103 situated in the municipality of Kuils River,
Cape Town, held under Title Deed No T38397/2019.
- Purchase price
- Fair value adjustment

Machadorp
Being Erf No's 197 and 238 situated in the Emakhazeni
local municipality, held under Title Deed No
T17083/2006.
Machadorp consists of vacant land that is held for
capital appreciation.
- Purchase price: 1 December 2005
- Additions since purchase
- Fair value adjustment
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Investment property (continued)

Details of valuation
Independent valuations were obtained for all properties. The detailed valuations were performed by an independent valuer,
DDP Valuation and Advisory Services Proprietary Limited on 19 January 2021 for the purpose of measuring the properties at
fair value for inclusion in the 2020 annual financial statements. The valuer is not connected to the group and has recent
experience in the location and the category of the investmnet properties being valued. The comparable sales method was
used ot determine the fair value of the majority of the properties, which consist of vacant land. The comparable sales method
uses the recent selling values of properties in a similar location, condition and size adjusted in certain instances for unit
density, usability and access. The income method was used to value property valued at R400 000. The income method is
based on contractual and estimated rental values, future rental income, anticipated maintenance costs and appropriate
capitalization rates. A capitalization rate of 10.5% was ued to arrive at the value.
The valuation method used is consistent with IFRS 13 and reflects the fair value of the properties based on its highest and best
use, at the current zoning.
Refer to note 31 for the fair value hierarchy disclosure.
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for the year
Rental income from investment property
Direct operating expenses from rental generating
property

23,173
(118,704)

25,588
(88,688)

-

-

(95,531)

(63,100)

-

-

Refer to note 26 for details of the contractual obligation of the group to acquire an investment property.
6.

Interests in subsidiaries

The following table lists the entities which are controlled by the group, either directly or indirectly through subsidiaries.
Group
Name of company (indirectly held via Visual International Proprietary Limited)

% holding % holding
2020
2019

Hoeksteen Projects Proprietary Limited
Richland Proprietary Limited
Stellendale Village Proprietary Limited
Mystic Pearl 129 Proprietary Limited
Visual Reit Number 1 Proprietary Limited

100.00
100.00
100.00
50.00
100.00
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Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

The following table lists the entities which are controlled directly by the company, and the carrying amounts of the investments
in the company's separate financial statements.
Company
Name of company

% voting % voting % holding % holding
Carrying
power
power
2020
2019
amount 2020
2020
2019

Visual International Proprietary Limited

100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 %

Carrying
amount 2019

-

-

Visual International Holdings Limited is an investment company and holds investments in companies that hold properties. The
recoverability of the investment was therefore assessed by comparison to the recoverable amount of the underlying properties
of Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries as at 29 February 2020 and up to the date of publishing these
group financial statements. Events after the reporting period were also considered to determine as to whether there were any
adjusting or non-adjusting events that should be disclosed (refer to note 33). The recoverable amount was calculated by
reference to the fair value less costs of disposal of the underlying properties, which amounted to nil.
The fair value less costs of disposal of the underlying properties included in Visual International Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries was determined by the independent valuer referred to in note 5 and was largely based on market related
comparable sales of similar properties sold in the same area as the underlying properties of Visual International Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries.
Details of subsidiaries operations
Visual International Proprietary Limited is primarily engaged in the development of properties for sale. The company also
renders property letting services and management services on ongoing property development projects.
Richland Proprietary Limited is engaged in the acquisition, development and selling of immovable property.
Stellendale Village Proprietary Limited is engaged in property holding and development.
Hoeksteen Projects Proprietary Limited is engaged in trading in all aspects, with investment in immovable property being the
main business.
Visual Reit Number 1 Limited was dormant during the year under review.
All subsidiaries are incorporated in South Africa and have the same year end as Visual International Holdings Limited.
7.

Loans to group companies

Subsidiaries
Visual International Proprietary Limited
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at 12% per annum and is
repayable on demand. Management does not expect to call on
this loan in the twelve months after year end.
Visual Reit Number 1 Proprietary Limited
The loan is unsecured, interest free and is repayable on
demand. Management does not expect to call on this loan in
the twelve months after year end.

-

-

-

33,124,982

-

-

-

1,000,000

-

-

-

34,124,982

As the loans are repayable on demand they are considered to be in default (refer note 8), however the expected credit loss
calculation exceeded the underlying property valuations and the loans were reduced to nil value.
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Loans to group companies (continued)

Exposure to credit risk
Loans receivable inherently expose the group to credit risk, being the risk that the group will incur financial loss if
counterparties fail to make payments as they fall due.
The credit quality of loans to group companies is assessed with reference to the financial position of the relevant company,
past experience and other factors. The loans to these group companies were accordingly assessed to be of poor quality and
as a result an expected credit loss was raised.
The financial position of the companies was determined by assessing the companies' solvency, liquidity and profitability. Visual
International Proprietary Limited incurred a net loss during the year under review, and is forecasting a loss for the 2021
financial year. The company is busy with a turnaround strategy which should materialise in 2022 financial year. Refer to note
32 (going concern).
Credit loss allowances
The following tables set out the carrying amount, loss allowance and measurement basis of expected credit losses for group
loans receivable by credit rating grade:
Company - 2020
Instrument

Basis of loss allowance

Gross Carrying Loss allowance
amount

Amortised cost

Loans to subsidiaries
Visual International Proprietary
Limited
Visual Reit Limited

Lifetime ECL

37,474,134

Lifetime ECL

(37,474,134)

-

1,000,000

(1,000,000)

-

38,474,134

(38,474,134)

-

38,474,134

(38,474,134)

-

38,474,134

(38,474,134)

-

Total credit loss allowances
Loans to subsidiaries

8.

Loan to shareholder

RAL Trust
This loan bears interest at 7.25% (2019: 7.75%) per
annum. The group has entered into an agreement in
terms of which Erf 18362, Kuils River, will be aquired
from RAL Trust at the fair value of the said property (the
purchase price) to be determined once the property has
been rezoned for its intended use (refer to note 26 Commitments). This transaction will result in the
simultaneous settlement of the majority of the loan
receivable from RAL Trust for the aquisition of the
property on the transfer of the property to the group.

6,499,800

Management does not expect the settlement of this
loan within twelve months after year end.
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Loan to shareholder (continued)

Exposure to credit risk
Loans receivable inherently exposes the group to credit risk, being the risk that the group will incur financial loss if
counterparties fail to make payments as they fall due.
The credit quality of the loan to shareholder is assessed with reference to the financial position of the relevant entity, past
experience and other factors. The loan to shareholder was accordingly assessed to be of an average quality.
In order to assess the ability of the shareholder to repay its loan, the financial position of the shareholder and its ability to settle
the loan was considered, as well as the fair value (R6.5 million) of the property that is pledged as security for the loan and the
subordination agreement that was concluded between the group and CKR Investment Trust.
The loan to the shareholder (RAL Trust) was impaired during the year under review. Due to COVID-19 and the negative impact
on the property market, the property sector has become a focus area for directors and shareholders. Two independent
valuations were obtained for the entire property portfolio, including the property held by the shareholder (RAL Trust). These
were performed by Adval Valuation Centre cc and DDP Valuation and Advisory Services Proprietary Limited (“DDP”). Adval
Valuation Centre valued the vacant land held by the RAL Trust on the basis that the land will be rezoned to business use. DDP
valued the land on the comparable sales basis, taking into account the current highest and best use, which they believe will be
General Residential 2 to 4. This resulted in a value significantly lower than that calculated by Adval. The directors raised a
provision for credit loss against the shareholder loan, which is backed by the property Erf 18362, Kuils River. As per the initial
listing requirements, the property will be independently valued based on the applicable rezoning at the time of transfer from the
RAL Trust to Visual International Proprietary Limited.
Credit loss allowances
The following tables set out the carrying amount, loss allowance and measurement basis of expected credit losses for loan to
shareholder by credit rating grade:
Group - 2020
Instrument

Basis of loss allowance

RAL Trust

Lifetime ECL

Gross Carrying
amount
43,118,494

Loss
allowance
(36,618,694)

Amortised
cost
6,499,800

Gross Carrying
amount
39,907,903

Loss
allowance
(2,907,058)

Amortised
cost
37,000,845

Group - 2019
Instrument

Basis of loss allowance

RAL Trust

Lifetime ECL
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Finance lease receivables

Maturity analysis of lease payments receivable
- first year

-

3,515,514

-

-

Gross investment in the leases
Less: Unearned interest income

-

3,515,514
(441,180)

-

-

Net investment in the lease

-

3,074,334

-

-

406,304

315,836

-

-

Other information regarding finance lease receivables:
Interest income recognised on net investment in the
leases
10. Deferred tax
Deferred tax liability
Temporary differences on property plant and equipment
Temporary difference on revaluation of investment
properties

(1,961,361)

(11,484)
(1,687,694)

-

-

Total deferred tax liability

(1,961,361)

(1,699,178)

-

-

Deferred tax asset
Deductible temporary differences on property, plant and
equipment
Tax losses available for set off against future taxable
income
Total deferred tax asset

2,732

-

-

-

362,328

1,699,178

-

-

365,060

1,699,178

-

-

(1,699,178)
1,699,178

-

-

The net deferred tax liability can be shown as follows:
Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax asset

(1,961,361)
365,060

Total net deferred tax liability

(1,596,301)

-

-

-

(86,993)

-

-

-

6,766

-

-

(273,667)

-

-

-

(1,249,857)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset / (liability)
Decrease in tax loss available for set off against future
taxable income
Deductible temporary difference movement on tangible
fixed assets
Taxable temporary difference arising on fair value
adjustment on investment property
Deferred tax not recognised on assessed tax loss
forfeited
Other

14,216

(1,596,301)

44

(6,766)
-

Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(Registration number 2006/030975/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 29 February 2020

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Group
Figures in Rand

2020

Company
2019

2020

2019

11. Trade and other receivables
Financial instruments:
Trade receivables
Deposits
Other receivable

9,906
4,500
-

9,906
4,500
150,000

-

-

Non-financial instruments:
VAT

115,098

44,777

-

-

Total trade and other receivables

129,504

209,183

-

-

Financial instrument and non-financial instrument components of trade and other receivables
At amortised cost
Non-financial instruments

14,406
115,098

164,406
44,777

-

-

129,504

209,183

-

-

Trade receivables inherently expose the group to credit risk, being the risk that the group will incur financial loss if customers
fail to make payments as they fall due.

Credit quality of trade and other receivables
The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
historical and future information about counterparty default rates. The trade and other receivables were accordingly assessed
to be of a good quality.
12. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank balances

372,617

284,181

-

-

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand
The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings:
Credit rating
First National Bank Limited (rating BB+)
Bidvest Bank Limited (rating BB+)

45

372,617

284,181
-

-

-

372,617

284,181

-

-

Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(Registration number 2006/030975/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 29 February 2020

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Group
Figures in Rand

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

268,265,547

268,265,547

268,265,547

268,265,547

73,809,025

73,809,025

73,809,025

73,809,025

-

-

417,643

417,643

-

38,434

-

-

8,547,657

7,582,352

8,547,657

7,582,352

13. Share capital
Authorised
1 000 000 Ordinary shares of no par value
Reconciliation of number of shares issued:
Reported as at 01 March 2019
Issued
268 265 547 (2019: 268 265 547) ordinary no par value
shares
14. Loans from group companies
Subsidiaries
Stellendale Village Proprietary Limited
The loan is unsecured, interest free and is repayable on or
before 29 February 2020.
The company has defaulted on the payment of the loan at 29
February 2020. The subsidiary reserves the right to call for
immediate repayment of the loan in event of default and this
loan is therefore classified as current.

Dream Weaver Trading 170 Proprietary Limited
The loan was unsecured, bore interest at 8% per annum (linked
to prime interest rate) and had no fixed terms of repayment
15. Loan from shareholder
CKR Investment Trust
This loan bears interest at the prime overdraft lending
rate plus 2.00% per annum, prime being 9.75% (2019:
10.25%) at year end and has no fixed terms of
repayment.
The group entered into a subordination agreement
where the loan has been ceded in favour of the group
for the loan outstanding by the RAL Trust (refer note 8).
The loan to the CKR Trust will not be repaid until such
time as the RAL Trust has settled the amount owing to
the group. The settlement of the loan owing by the RAL
Trust is expected to be in excess of twelve months.
Exposure to liquidity risk

Refer to note 30 Financial instruments and financial risk management for details of liquidity risk exposure and management.
Exposure to interest rate risk
Refer to note 30 Financial instruments and financial risk management for details of interest rate risk management for loans
from shareholders.
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16. Borrowings
Held at amortised cost
Standard Bank (Kuils River - Stellendale houses)
This loan bore interest at the prime overdraft lending
rate less 2.05% per annum, prime being 10.25% at the
2018 year end. The loan was repayable in monthly
installments of R129 000 and was repaid during the
year. The loan was secured by properties included in
finance lease receivables.

-

3,300,350

-

-

Oupossie Trust
This loan was unsecured and interest free. During the
current year the loan was forgiven and therefore written
off.

-

1,297,669

-

-

My Place Trust
This loan bears interest at 7.25% (2019: 7.75%) per
annum. The loan has been ceded in favour of the group
for the loan outstanding by the RAL Trust. The loan to
My Place Trust will not be repaid until such time as the
RAL Trust has settled the amount owing to the group.
The settlement of the loan owing by the RAL Trust is
expected to be in excess of twelve months.

1,936,535

1,760,236

-

-

Standard Bank (Erf 197 and 238)
This loan bears interest at the prime overdraft lending
rate less 0.20% per annum, prime being 9.75% (2019:
10.25%) at year end. The loan is repayable in monthly
installments of R1 818 (2019: R1 779) and is secured
by investment property with a carrying value of
R820,000 (2019: R1,100,000) as further detailed in
note 3.

114,931

124,459

-

-

Transflora Properties Proprietary Limited
This unsecured loan bears interest at the prime
overdraft lending rate less 2.5% per annum, prime
being 9.75% (2019: 10.25%) at year end and has no
fixed terms of repayment.
The group has the right to defer payment for a period of
twelve months after year end.

2,298,669

2,132,160

-

-

Diepwater Trust
This loan bears interest at prime plus 2.0% per annum,
prime being 9.75% at year end. The loan has been
ceded in favour of the group for the loan outstanding by
the RAL Trust. The loan to Diepwater Trust will not be
repaid until such time as the RAL Trust has settled the
amount owing to the group. The settlement of the loan
owing by the RAL Trust is expected to be in excess of
twelve months.

98,168

98,820

-

-
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Makoro Property Developers
This loan is secured by Erf 26103 and bears interest at
prime minus 3% per annum, prime being 9.75% at year
end. The repayment date was renegotiated after yearend to the earlier of 28 February 2022 or the date of
completion of the development of the intial two
buildings under the development project which is
estimated to be completed by June 2022.
Chynge Finance Proprietary Limited
This loan is secured by Erf 26103 and bears interest at
prime minus 3% per annum, prime being 9.75% at year
end. The repayment of the loan has been renegotiated
after year-end and is linked to the building project of the
Marine, Strand. Settlement payments will flow as the
building process progress.
NS Solving Quantity
Surveyors will assist with the building and
administration process which is estimated to be
completed by July 2021.

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

1,910,925

2,043,064

-

-

2,191,278

3,275,980

-

-

8,550,506

14,032,738

-

-

4,436,969
4,113,537

10,723,124
3,309,614

-

-

8,550,506

14,032,738

-

-

4,261,654
2,694,479
1,040,000
1,121,288
2,733
34,317

3,779,102
1,531,479
1,040,000
1,331,811
3,035,087
50,000

2,008,478
-

1,531,478
-

360,839

2,427,425

-

-

9,515,310

13,194,904

2,008,478

1,531,478

Split between non-current and current portions
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

17. Trade and other payables
Financial instruments:
Trade payables
Accrual for non-executive directors remuneration
Mosegedi & Associates Proprietary Limited
Accrual for executive personnel remuneration*
South African Revenue Service - PAYE
Other payables
Non-financial instruments:
VAT

Financial instrument and non-financial instrument components of trade and other payables
At amortised cost
Non-financial instruments

9,154,470
360,839

10,767,479
2,427,425

2,008,478
-

1,531,478
-

9,515,309

13,194,904

2,008,478

1,531,478

* executive directors were not paid during the year so as to support the turnaround initiative of the company.
Exposure to interest rate risk
Refer to note 30 Financial instruments and financial risk management for details of interest rate risk management for trade and
other payables.
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17. Trade and other payables (continued)
Fair value of trade and other payables
The fair value of trade and other payables approximates their carrying amounts.
18. Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers
Rendering of services

400,000

-

720,000

-

23,173

25,588

-

-

423,173

25,588

720,000

-

400,000

-

720,000

-

400,000

-

720,000

-

1,297,669
5,124,343
19,902

76,694

-

-

6,441,914

76,694

-

-

1,105,862

315,599

121,293

1,426

Salaries, wages, bonuses and other benefits
Travel Allowances

1,344,560
96,000

1,928,273
97,858

-

-

Total employee costs

1,440,560

2,026,131

-

-

Revenue other than from contracts with customers
Rental Income

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The group disaggregates revenue from customers as follows:
Rendering of services
Administration and management fees received
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Rendering of services
19. Other operating income
Gain on release from financial liability
SARS compromise
Other income

20. Operating loss
Operating loss for the year is stated after charging the following, amongst others:
Remuneration, other than to employees
Consulting and professional services
Employee costs

Leases
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20. Operating loss (continued)
Operating lease charges
Premises - short term lease
Equipment

Depreciation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses
Property, plant and equipment
Movement in credit loss allowances
Loans to group companies
Loans to shareholders

117,600
-

191,003
12,685

-

-

117,600

203,688

-

-

98,404

177,726

-

-

-

121,014

-

-

33,711,636

-

38,296,835
-

-

33,711,636

-

38,296,835

-

3,127,330

2,907,702

-

-

3,590
406,304

6,330
315,836

-

-

-

-

3,965,457

4,808,875

3,537,224

3,229,868

3,965,457

4,808,875

965,305
166,510
133,630
837,400
12,600
291,154
28,347

859,334
155,319
142,253
711,817
529,451
7,704

965,305
25,099

859,334
14

2,434,946

2,405,878

990,404

859,348

1,596,301

242,466

-

-

21. Investment income
Interest income
Loans to:
Shareholders
Investments in financial assets:
Bank and other cash
Finance lease receivables
Loans to group companies:
Subsidiaries
Total interest income
22. Finance costs
Shareholders
Companies controlled by directors
Trusts of close family member of director/shareholders
Other financial liabilities
Current borrowings
Tax authorities
Other
Total finance costs
23. Taxation
Major components of the tax expense (income)
Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences
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23. Taxation (continued)
Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.
Accounting loss

(24,630,070)

(7,575,355)

(35,567,287)

2,651,488

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% (2019: 28%)

(6,896,420)

(2,121,099)

(9,958,840)

742,417

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Charitable donations income
Legal expenses
Fines income
SARS interest and penalties
SARS debt reduction
Impairment on loans
Tax losses carried forward
Fair value adjustment on investment property
Deferred tax asset not recognised
Capital gain on sale of property
Assessed loss utilised not recognised
Gain on loan write off
Modification of financial asset gains

118,794
81,925
(1,434,816)
9,439,258
362,328
(345,696)
259,378
1,462,515
(1,087,618)
(363,347)
-

604,080
29,862
148,246
813,976
767,401
-

1,596,301

242,466

10,723,114
(764,274)
-

604,080
(1,346,497)

-

-

-

-

24. Tax refunded
Balance at beginning of the year
Balance at end of the year

1,686
(1,686)

1,686
(1,686)

-

-

-

-

(14,032,738)
(520,324)
2,460,104
8,550,506

(9,853,903)
(6,137,245)
1,309,579
14,032,738

-

-

(3,542,452)

(648,831)

-

-

25. Repayment of borrowings
Opening balance
Proceeds from borrowings
Non-cash movements*
Closing balance

* Included in non-cash movements are interest raised on loan accounts, suppliers paid by reated parties and the current year
also includes a transfer of property between related parties.
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26. Commitments
Investment properties
The company has entered into an agreement in terms of which it is required to purchase a property, consisting of Erf 18362
('the property') from RAL Trust, subject to the successful rezoning of the property. The purchase price will be equal to the fair
value of the property on the date that the property is rezoned and will be used to settle the loan receivable from the RAL Trust.
Should the value of the property not be sufficient to cover the outstanding loan, the loans to CKR Trust, My Place Trust and
Diepwater Trust will no be repaid. Refer to notes 8 and 16.
In the unlikely event that the rezoning is not successful, the value of the property is assessed to be its fair value as measured in
the annual financial statements.
Operating leases – as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year

125,832

117,600

-

-

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office premises and office equipment.
Leases are negotiated on an annual basis. No contingent rent is payable.
27. Contingencies
There are no actual or pending legal or arbitration proceedings that the group is aware of (2019: none) that may have or have
had in the last 12 months, a material effect on the Company's or group's financial position.
28. Related parties
`

Relationships
Subsidiaries
Companies controlled by directors

Refer to note 6
Transflora Proprietary Limited
Transflora Properties Proprietary Limited
My Place Trust
CKR Investment Trust
RAL Trust

Trusts of close family member of director / shareholders

Related party balances
Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties
Transflora Properties Proprietary Limited
Visual International Proprietary Limited
Stellendale Village Proprietary Limited
Visual Reit No 1 Limited
My Place Trust
CKR Investment Trust
RAL Trust
Diepwater Trust

(2,298,669)
(1,936,535)
(8,547,657)
6,499,800
(98,168)

(2,132,160)
(1,760,296)
(7,582,352)
37,000,845
(98,820)

(417,643)
(8,547,657)
-

33,302,281
(417,643)
1,000,000
(7,582,352)
-

Amounts included in trade receivables (trade
payables) regarding related parties
Executive directors
Non-executive directors
Trusts of directors

(885,777)
(2,694,479)
(475,139)

(1,259,342)
(1,531,479)
(72,466)

(2,008,478)
-

(1,531,479)
-
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28. Related parties (continued)
Related party transactions
Interest paid to (received from) related parties
Transflora Properties Proprietary Limited
Visual International Proprietary Limited
CKR Investment Trust
Trusts of close family member of director
RAL Trust
Diepwater Trust

166,510
965,305
133,630
(3,127,330)
(11,150)

Rent paid to (received from) related parties
Trusts of directors

155,319
859,349
142,253
(2,907,058)
(26,720)

(3,965,457)
965,305
-

(4,808,875)
859,349
-

117,600

191,003

-

-

Salary paid to related party
Close family members / companies controlled by close
family members of director

91,040

67,320

-

-

Legal fees paid to related party
Close family members / companies controlled by close
family members of director

394,909

115,508

-

-

-

-

33,711,636
-

-

Administration fees received from related party
Visual International Proprietary Limited
Expected credit loss movements
RAL Trust
Visual Reit No. 1 Limited
Visual International (Pty) Ltd

53

(720,000)
1,000,000
37,296,835

-

Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(Registration number 2006/030975/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 29 February 2020

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Group
Figures in Rand

2020

Company
2019

2020

2019

29. Directors' emoluments
Executive
2020
CK Robertson

Emoluments Other benefits*
630,000
56,000

Total
686,000

Emoluments Other benefits*
1,338,600
96,000

Total
1,434,600

Directors' fees
210,000
210,000
210,000
150,000

Total
210,000
210,000
210,000
150,000

780,000

780,000

Directors' fees
150,000
210,000
210,000
150,000

Total
150,000
210,000
210,000
150,000

720,000

720,000

2019
CK Robertson
* Other benefits comprise travel allowance.
Non-executive
2020
R Kadalie
RR Richards
CT Vorster
LT Matholwa

2019
R Kadalie
RR Richards
CT Vorster
LT Matholwa
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Categories of financial instruments
Categories of financial assets
Group - 2020
Loans to shareholders
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Note(s) Amortised cost
8
6,499,800
11
14,406
12
372,617

Total
6,499,800
14,406
372,617

6,886,823

6,886,823

Note(s) Amortised cost
8
37,000,845
11
164,406
12
284,181

Total
37,000,845
164,406
284,181

37,449,432

37,449,432

Group - 2019
Loans to shareholders
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Company - 2019
Note(s) Amortised cost
Loans to group companies

7
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Categories of financial liabilities
Group - 2020
Note(s) Amortised cost
Trade and other payables
Loans from shareholders
Borrowings

17
8
16

Total

9,154,464
8,547,657
9,848,175

9,154,464
8,547,657
9,848,175

27,550,296

27,550,296

Group - 2019
Note(s) Amortised cost
Trade and other payables
Loans from group companies
Loans from shareholders
Borrowings

17
14
8
16

Total

10,767,479
38,434
7,582,352
14,032,738

10,767,479
38,434
7,582,352
14,032,738

32,421,003

32,421,003

Company - 2020
Note(s) Amortised cost
Trade and other payables
Loans from group companies
Loans from shareholders

17
14
8

Total

2,008,479
417,643
8,547,657

2,008,479
417,643
8,547,657

10,973,779

10,973,779

Company - 2019
Note(s) Amortised cost
Trade and other payables
Loans from group companies
Loans from shareholders

17
14
8

Total

1,531,479
417,643
7,582,352

1,531,479
417,643
7,582,352

9,531,474

9,531,474

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the group and company for both years approximate fair
value.
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Capital risk management
The group's objective when managing capital are to safeguard the group's ability to continue as a going concern, obtain new
capital to continue with planned developments and to provide returns for shareholders.
The capital structure of the group consists of debt, which includes loan from shareholder and borrowings, disclosed in notes 15
and 16 and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial position.
The group has not paid any dividends in order to retain capital for future development.
The directors review the management accounts of the group on a monthly basis and is actively working towards developing
vacant land. There were no changes in the group's approach to capital management during the year.
There are no externally imposed capital requirements.
There have been no changes to what the entity manages as capital, the strategy for capital maintenance or externally imposed
capital requirements from the previous year.
Financial risk management
Overview
The group is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk;

Liquidity risk; and

Market risk (interest rate risk and price risk).
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:
Group

2020
Gross
carrying
amount

Loans to shareholders
Loans to directors,
managers and employees
Loans receivable
Lease receivables
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

8

9
11
12

2019

Credit loss
allowance

Amortised
cost

43,118,494 (36,618,694)
165,892
(165,892)
14,406
372,617

-

43,671,409 (36,784,586)
Company

6,499,800
-

39,907,903
165,892

14,406
372,617

39,500
3,074,334
164,406
284,181

6,886,823

43,636,216

2020
Gross
carrying
amount

Loans to group companies

Gross
carrying
amount

7

Credit loss
allowance

38,474,134 (38,474,134)
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Credit loss
allowance

Amortised
cost

(2,907,058) 37,000,845
(165,892)
(39,500)
-

3,074,334
164,406
284,181

(3,112,450) 40,523,766
2019

Amortised
cost

Gross
carrying
amount
-

34,302,281

Credit loss
allowance

Amortised
cost

(177,299) 34,124,982
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Liquidity risk
The group is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the group will encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they
become due.
The group's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The group manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and the utlisation of borrowing facilities are monitored.
The table below analyses the group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
Group - 2020
Less than
1 year

1 to 2
years

2 to 5 years

Greater than 5
years

Total

Carrying
amount

Non-current liabilities
Loans from shareholders
Borrowings

15
16

-

9,607,896
4,707,462

85,416

38,178

9,607,896
4,831,056

8,547,657
4,436,969

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

17
16

9,154,464
4,523,984

-

-

-

9,154,464
4,523,984

9,154,464
4,113,537

(28,117,400)

(26,252,627)

(13,678,448)

(14,315,358)

(85,416)

(38,178)

Group - 2019
Less than
1 year
Non-current liabilities
Loans from shareholders
Borrowings
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans from group
companies
Borrowings

15
16

14
16

1 to 2
years

2 to 5 years

Greater than 5
years

Total

Carrying
amount

-

8,565,152
11,518,225

85,416

58,723

8,565,152
11,662,364

7,582,352
10,723,124

10,767,479

-

-

-

10,767,479

10,767,479

38,434
3,433,894

-

-

-

38,434
3,433,894

38,434
3,309,614

(34,467,323)

(32,421,003)

(14,239,807)

(20,083,377)
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Company - 2020
Less than
1 year

1 to 2
years

Total

Carrying
amount

Non-current liabilities
Loan from shareholder

15

-

9,607,896

9,607,896

8,547,657

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans from group companies

14

2,008,479
417,643

-

2,008,479
417,643

2,008,479
417,643

(12,034,018)

(10,973,779)

(2,426,122)

(9,607,896)

Company - 2019
Less than
1 year

1 to 2
years

Total

Carrying
amount

Non-current liabilities
Loans from shareholders

15

-

8,565,152

8,565,152

7,582,352

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans from group companies

17
14

1,531,479
417,643

-

1,531,479
417,643

1,531,479
417,643

(10,514,274)

(9,531,474)

(1,949,122)

(8,565,152)

Interest rate risk
Details of interest rate risk exposure are contained in the relevant notes throughout these financial statements.
Group
The sensitivity analysis below presents the interest rate risks in accordance with IFRS 7. It has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for financial instruments at the reporting date and shows the effects of changes in market interest
rates on interest payments. For variable rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the closing liability was outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease represents management's assessment of the reasonable possible
change in interest rate for 2019 and 2020.
At 29 February 2020, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings/loan receivables had been 1.00% higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been R81 399 (2019: R57 880) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings and the interest income on the loan receivable.
Company
The sensitivity analysis below presents the interest rate risks in accordance with IFRS 7. It has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for financial instruments at the reporting date and shows the effects of changes in market interest
rates on interest payments. For variable rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the closing liability was outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease represents management's assessment of the reasonable possible
change in interest rate for 2019 and 2020.
At 29 February 2020, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings/loan receivables had been 1.00% higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been R166 643 (2019: R228 170) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings and the interest income on the loan receivable.
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Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses assets and liabilities carried at fair value. The different levels are defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted unadjusted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the group can access at measurement
date.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or
indirectly.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Levels of fair value measurements
Level 3
Recurring fair value measurements
Assets
Investment property
Storerooms (refer to note for detailed breakdown)
Land for capital appreciation (refer to note for detailed
breakdown)

Note(s)
5
400,000
12,320,000

820,000
1,100,000

-

-

Total investment property

12,720,000

1,920,000

-

-

Total

12,720,000

1,920,000

-

-

Information about valuation techniques and inputs used to derive level 3 fair values
Investment property
Refer to note 5 for details of the valuation techniques and inputs used to derive the value of investment property.
32. Going concern
We draw attention to the fact that at 29 February 2020, the group had accumulated losses of R80 583 921 (2019: R54 445
571) and the company accumulated losses of R84 782 803 (2019: R49 215 516). The current liabilities exceed the current
assets by R13 125 040 (2019: R12 973 568) on Group Level.
The Group annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and the
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
The Group’s cash flow situation improved during the year under review with the proceeds being received from the disposal of
Stellendale Junction as detailed further below. The directors have considered the operational budget and cash flow forecasts
for the ensuing year which are based on the current expected economic and market conditions as well as the expected
proceeds from the Property Development Agreement mentioned below, expected from July 2021 onwards and the directors
believe the company has adequate financial resources to continue as a going concern.
As announced on SENS on 31 July 2018, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Chynge Finance Proprietary
Limited (“Chynge Finance”) in terms of which Chynge Finance has extended a loan to the Company in the amount of R3
million, which loan agreement incorporated an option to subscribe for shares in the future. This loan was repayable on 6
January 2020, but prior to this date the repayment date of this loan was extended for an indefinite period; and the parties
agreed by way of an addendum to cancel the option. Subsequently, R1.5 million of the loan has been repaid. It is the intention
for Visual International to oversee and manage the building project of the Marine, Strand and that Chynge Finance will receive
its settlement payments on the loan from the advance payments during the building process.
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32. Going concern (continued)
In addition, during the year under review, the Group entered into a compromise offer with SARS for the settlement of old
liabilities, which primarily arose from the initial restructure of the group ahead of listing. The Group successfully negotiated a
settlement with SARS which resulted in the reduction of R5 385 984. All amounts owed to SARS have been settled from
proceeds received on the disposal of Stellendale Junction.
As announced on SENS on 28 December 2018, Visual International agreed terms for the disposal of land with Makoro Property
Developers Proprietary Limited (“Makoro”) in terms of which Visual International disposed of the property described as Erf
25312 Kuils River, situated in the registration division of Stellenbosch in extent of 27.7179 hectares (“Stellendale Junction”) for
a consideration of R10 million, plus VAT (if applicable) (“Stellendale Junction Disposal Agreement”). Zoning rights are in place
for this property and the disposal was finalised in October 2019 with the transfer of the property. The proceeds of R10 million
were received, substantially reducing the remaining debt in the group and repaying the R1.5 million to Chynge Finance above.
Simultaneously with the sale agreement, a property development management agreement in respect of Stellendale Junction
was concluded by Visual International with Makoro in terms of which Visual International will receive 50% of the net profit for
the development of each phase (“Property Development Management Agreement”). Furthermore, Makoro concluded a loan
agreement for a loan of R2 million with the Company, which amount attracts interest at 3% above the prime rate charged by
ABSA Bank with the terms being renegotiated after year-end. In terms of the revised terms the repayment date wil be the
earlier of the 28th February 2022 and the date of completion of the development of the initial two buildings under the
developmet project. In addition subsequent to year end the addendum to the Stellendale Junctional Development
Management Agreement indicates that the payment of any remuneration and/or profit share payale to Visual is subject to all
the amounts owing by Visual, Visual International Holdings Proprietary Limited and the trustees for the time being My Place
Trust be repaid in full to the satisfaction of Makoro. In addition there shall be set-off of amounts owing in terms of the loan
agreement to Makoro and any remuneration/profit share due to Visual, failing which it is expected that the proceeds from the
balance of the share subscription from Verityhurst will be utilised to repay the loan.
The development potential in respect of the Stellendale Junction land is approximately 500 apartments on the site. The sale
and development of 56 these apartment buildings will bring revenue and additional cash flow to the Group over the next two to
three years. The Company manages the development processes, and Makoro pays for all development expenses and for
securing the development funding for Stellendale Junction.
With the restructuring and de-gearing exercise essentially complete, Visual has been actively seeking development funding or
partners in order to continue with the development of the rest of Stellendale. After year-end, the Company entered into an
equity and loan agreement with Verityhurst (Pty) Ltd. R2.45 million of the total of R5.32 million has been lent to the Company
by Verityhurst, which loan will be converted into shares after unsuspension by the JSE of the trading of the Company’s shares.
As the full amount of the investment/loan by Verityhurst has not yet been paid, the fact that the properties of Phase 1 of
Stellendale Junction must still be sold and developed, there is material uncertainties related to these events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, that it may be unable to release
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The directors believe that due to the disposal of
Stellendale Junction, from which it will earn property development fees and profit share, the Subscription Agreement with
Verityhurst for the injection of R5.32 million and conclusion of the other agreements with terms referred to above, the Company
will have adequate financial resources to continue as a going concern. In addition, the remaining creditors are those that are
close to the Company and support the turnaround initiatives of the Company. Accordingly, the directors have adopted the
going concern basis in the preparation of the annual financial statements.
The Company has sufficient cash and has commenced with projects and expects to secure access to funding resources to
grow the Group’s property assets.
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33. Events after the reporting period
Subscription Agreements with Verityhurst Proprietary Limited (“Verityhurst’)
On 17 June 2020 the Company entered into a subscription agreement with Verityhurst (“the Subscriber”) in terms of which the
Subscriber agreed to subscribe for 303 030 304 ordinary Visual shares for cash at an issue price of 4 cents per share for a
consideration of R5 320 000, of which R3 000 000 has been agreed to be advanced as a loan to the Company and applied to
creditors, working capital, the settlement of the Mosegedi debtor (which has enabled the cancellation of the Mosegedi shares
subsequent to year-end) and the finalisation of the audits and Annual Reports for the two years ended 28 February 2019 and
29 February 2020. As at the date of this report, R2 150 000 had been advanced to Visual.
The Subscription Price is at an 8.89% premium to the 30-day volume weighted average share price of 3.67 cents per share at
30 June 2019, being the last date of trade prior to the suspension of the Company on the JSE and the reference price used
and agreed to by the Company and the Subscriber. The Board approved the Issue of shares under the General Authority to
issue shares for cash on 17 June 2020. The shares to be issued will rank pari passu with the existing shares in issue and are
of a class already in issue. The shares will be issued and listed after the lifting of the suspension in trade of the Company’s
securities.
There are no other material events that require reporting after the year end, other than in the normal course of business.
COVID-19
Since December 2019 the spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted many economies around the world. Businesses were
forced to limit operations and has resulted in an economic slowdown. Governments and central banks have assisted with
monetary interventions to stabilise economic conditions.
Visual has had little trading subsequent to the 2019 year-end, while trying to secure funding for future development of its
investment property. Staff operated remotely and the Company has managed to continue operating during this period and
Management are confident that it will be able to continue to do so until such time as this is no longer required.
Other than the delay in the commencement of the Stellendale Junction development noted above, COVID-19 has not had any
major impact on the group.
The company made arrangements with its creditors for debts to be settled later on in the 2021 year. There has been no threat
of litigation by any of the creditors, which are supporting the turnaround initiatives of Visual.
The company has determined that this is a non-adjusting subsequent event. Accordingly, the financial position and results of
operations as of and for the year ended 29 February 2020 have not been adjusted to reflect its impact. It is not possible to
reliably estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and results
of the company for future periods.
34. Segmental information
The composition and measurement of reportable segments is consistent with the previous year.
Segment revenue and expenses
Revenue and expenses that are directly attributable to segments are allocated to those segments. Those that are not directly
attributable to segments are allocated on a reasonable basis. Interest income on loans to shareholders are included in the
property development segment as the recoverability of the loans to shareholders are based on the fair value of the
shareholders underlying assets which included property held for development. Interest expenses on loans from shareholders
and other related party loans are not directly or indirectly related to specific segments and income tax is not included in the
results of the segments when reviewed by the CEO.
Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets and liabilities comprise those operating assets and liabilities that are directly attributable to the segment or can
be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis.
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34. Segmental information (continued)
Segment assets include loans to shareholders these are allocated to property development segment as the recoverability of
the loans to shareholders are based on the fair value of the shareholders underlying assets which included property held for
development. Segment assests exclude other financial assets, deferred tax assets, tax assets, bank balances, deposits and
cash.
Segment liabilities exclude certain loans from shareholders, bank overdraft and current and deferred tax liabilities.
Capital expenditure represents the local costs incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be
used during more than one period, namely, property, plant and equipment, investment property. During the financial year under
review the capital expenditure amounted to R Nil (2019: R70 163) and was attributable to the property, plant and equipment in
the property services segment.
The group currently has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the group's strategic business units. The
strategic business units offer different services and are reviewed by management. The following summary describes the
operations of each of the group's reportable segments for the years ended 29 February 2020 and 28 February 2019:
- Property Services segment – Rendering of management, administration and consulting services on development projects.
- Property Investment segment – Letting of residential properties held by the group.
- Property Development segment – Development of residential properties held by the group or sold to third parties.
The classification of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities in each segment is based on the main activity of each segment.
Primary segment report - 2020

Property
Services

Property
Investment

Property
Development

Total

Segment results
Rental income
Rendering of services
Less: Intercompany elimination

-

23,173
-

1,120,000
(720,000)

23,173
1,120,000
(720,000)

Total external revenue

-

23,173

400,000

423,173

Other operating income
Depreciation
Other operating expenses
Investment income
Finance costs

5,124,343
(90,781)
(3,166,913)
3,590
(889,408)

Segment results before taxation

980,831
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(118,704)
406,304
-

1,297,669
(7,622)
(1,674,925)
3,127,330
(280,093)

6,422,012
(98,403)
(4,960,542)
3,537,224
(1,169,501)

310,773

2,862,359

4,153,963

Visual International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(Registration number 2006/030975/06)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 29 February 2020
Figures in Rand

Figures
in Rand

Property
Services

Property
Investment

Property
Development

Total

34. Segmental information (continued)
Fair value gain on investment property
Other operating income
Impairment losses
Finance costs accrued on shareholder loans
Finance costs on related parties

-

-

-

6,173,146
19,902
(33,711,636)
(965,305)
(300,140)

Loss before taxation

-

-

-

(24,630,070)

Other reportable segment assets

13,575

9,906

19,334,898

19,358,379

Total reportable segment assets

13,575

9,906

19,334,898

19,358,379

Current tax
Cash and cash equivalents

-

-

-

1,686
372,617

Total assets per statement of financial position

-

-

-

19,732,682

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

2,450,156
-

114,931

5,990,831
-

8,440,987
114,931

Total reportable segment liabilities

2,450,156

114,931

5,990,831

8,555,918

Deferred tax
Loan from shareholder
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

-

-

-

1,596,301
8,547,657
8,435,575
1,074,323

Total liabilities per statement of financial position

-

-

-

28,209,774

Total revenue

-

25,588

-

25,588

Total external revenue

-

25,588

-

25,588

Segment assets and liabilities

Primary segment report - 2019
Segment results

Other income
Depreciation
Employee costs
Other operating expenses
Finance costs
Investment income

(72,324)
(591,531)
(3,183,786)
(1,236,169)
6,330

76,694
(90,837)
(88,688)
315,836

(14,566)
(1,434,600)
(239,687)
(12,804)
2,907,702

76,694
(177,727)
(2,026,131)
(3,512,161)
(1,248,973)
3,229,868

Segment results before taxation

(5,077,480)

238,593

1,206,045

(3,632,842)

Impairment losses
Finance costs accrued to shareholder loans
Finance costs on loans from related parties

-

-

-

(2,785,607)
(859,334)
(297,572)

Loss before taxation

-

-

-

(7,575,355)
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Figures
in Rand

Property
Services

Property
Investment

Property
Development

Total

34. Segmental information (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities
Other reportable segment assets

309,039

3,894,334

48,108,468

52,311,841

Total reportable segment assets

309,039

3,894,334

48,108,468

52,311,841

-

-

-

1,686
284,181

Current tax
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets per statement of financial position

52,597,708

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

11,863,091
-

124,459

1,331,812
3,300,350

13,194,903
3,424,809

Total reportable segment liabilities

11,863,091

124,459

4,632,162

16,619,712

Loans from group companies
Loan from shareholder
Borrowings

-

-

-

38,434
7,582,352
10,607,930

Total liabilities

-

-

-

34,848,428

Geographic information
The group's revenue is derived from operations and property holdings only in South Africa. The group's non-current assets are
also located in South Africa.
35. Loss per share
2020
Gross
Loss per share (cents)
Diluted loss per share (cents)
Headline loss per share (cents)

2019
Net

Gross

(9.74)
(9.74)
(11.53)

Loss attributable to equity holders of the parent
Fair value loss adjustment of investment property
Impairment loss

(6,173,146)
-

Headline earnings

(26,138,349)
(4,790,361)
(30,928,710)

Net
(2.90)
(2.90)
(2.86)

121,014

(7,785,243)
121,014
(7,664,229)

Loss per share as presented on the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income is based on the weighted
average number of 268 265 547 ordinary shares in issue (2019 - 268 265 547).
There are no dilutive instruments and therefore the basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are the same.
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